Introduced by Council Bill No. R177-13

A RESOLUTION

consenting to an increase in the sales tax rate imposed by the
Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI, AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby consents to an increase in the sales tax rate
imposed by the Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District from five-eighths
of one percent to one percent.

ADOPTED this day of , 2013.
ATTEST:
City Clerk Mayor and Presiding Officer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Counselor



s Source: Law Ck Agenda ltem No:

To: City Council

From: City Manager and Staff

Council Meeting Date:  Sep 3, 2013

Re: Consent to Increase in Sales Tax Rate for Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
" [TDD)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY;

A resolution has been prepared that would give the Cily's consent to an increase in the sales tax rate for the

Shoppes at Stadium TDD from 5/8 cent to one cent,

DISCUSSION:

The Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement between the City and the Shoppes at Stadium TDD provides
that the District shall not increase the sales tax rate without the pricr written consent of the City. {Agreements
with other TDDs provide that the Districts can increase sales tax rates only after giving notice of the increase
to the City.)

The Shoppes at Stadium TDD has notified the City that it wishes to increase its sales tax rate from five-eighths
of one percent to one percent (attached is detailed information from TDD's attorney). The increase will help
fund the Stadium Boulevard improvement project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Not applicabie.

VISION IMPACT:
hitp://www.gocolumbiagmo.com/Council/Meetings/visicnimpact.php

Not applicable.
SUGGESTED COUNCIL ACTIONS:

Adoption of the resolution,
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FISCAL and VISION NOTES:

City Fiscal Impact
Enter all that apply

Program Impact

Mandates

City's current net

New Programy/

Federal or State

FY cost $0.00 Agency? No mandated? No
Amount of funds Duplicates/Expands
already $0.00 Pl ¥ P 5| No Vision Implementation impact
appropriated an existing program?
Amount of Fiscal Impact on an
budget $0.00 locolp o Y o Enter all that apply:
omendment ' P. o Refer to Web site
needed subdivision®

Estimated 2 year net costs:

Resources Required

Vision Impact? No

Requires add'| FTE

Primary Vision, Strategy

One Time | $0.00 Personnelz |0 and/or Goal llern #
Operating/ $0.00 Requires add'l No Secondary Vision, Strategy

Ongoing ’ facilities? and/or Goal ltem #
Requires add'l No Fiscal year implementation

capital equipment?

Task #
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VAN MATRE, HARRISON, HOLLIS, TAYLOR, AND BACON, P.C.
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW
1103 EAST BROADWAY
PosT OFFICE Box 1017
COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 65201

CRAIG A. VAN MATRE (573) 874-7777

THOMAS M. HARRISON TELECOPIER (573) 875-0017

ROBERT N. HOLLIS E-MAIL robent@vanmatre. com

GARRETT 8§, TAYLOR EVERETT 5. VAN MATRE

Bryan C. BACON* {1922-1998)

CASEY E. ELLIOTT

RICHARD B. HICKS * ADMITTED IN MISSOUR] AMD ILLINOIS
July 26, 2013

Mayor Bob McDavid Mike Matthes, City Manager

City of Columbia City of Columbia

701 E. Broadway 701 E. Broadway

Columbia, MO 65201 Columbia, MO 65201

Via U.S, Mail and E-mail: Via U.S. Mail and E-mail:

mayor({@GoColumbiaMo.com mematthe{@gocolumbiamo.com

Nancy Thompson, City Counselor
City of Columbia

701 E. Broadway

Columbia, MO 65201

Via U.S. Mail and E-mail:
nithomps@gocolumbiamo.com

RE:  Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District (the “District™) / Notice
of Intent to Increase Sales Tax Rates within the above named District from five-
eighths cent to one cent on eligible retails sales

Dear Mayor McDavid, Manager Matthes and City Counselor Thompson,

Our firm represents the District. Based on a review of the District’s revenues and
financial obligations, the Board of Directors has concluded that it is necessary 1o increase the
sales tax rate charged on eligible retail sales within the District from five-eighths cent to one
cent. Appropriate resolutions will be adopted by the District which will seek approval of said
increase by the qualified voter (the property owner) and, upon obtaining such approval, will
cause said increased sales tax rate to go into effect on January 1, 2014.

The District is a party to an agreement with the City of Columbia dated October 18, 2004,
titled “Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement.” Section 4.1 of Article 1V of that agreement
states:

“The District agrees not to increase the sales tax rate without the prior wriiten

consent of the City.”

GATERESAWIPWIN\Kroenke\Biscayne-Shoppes at StadiumiLir 1o Mayor, City Manager, and City Counselor RE increasing Sales Tax 10 One Cent 7.26.13 do¢



Van Matre, Harrison, Hollis, Taylor, and Bacon, P.C.
Mayor Bob McDavid, Mike Matthes and Nancy Thompson
July 26, 2013
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That consent is hereby requested on behalf of the District. Please let me know if the
District is required to take any further action in order to obtain said consent. Please advise as to
the method and timing with respect to the City granting its consent. The City Council previously
gave its consent to increase the sales tax from one-half cent to five-eighths cent in Resolution
No. 101-12 on June 18§, 2012,

To the extent that the District is required to notify you of this planned sales tax increase
at least sixty (60) days prior to the date it goes into effect, this letter is intended to constitute that

notice.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me.
Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Van Matre, Harrison, Hollis, Taylor, and Bacon, P.C.

Sy

By: AT
Robért N. Hollis

RNH/jae

cC: Board of Directors of the District (Via E-mail}
City Council Members (Via E-mail)

G\TERESAVWIPWINKroenke\Biscayne-Shoppes at Stadium'Lir to Mayor, City Manager, and City Counselor RE Increasing Sales Tax to Ong Cem 7.26.13 doc



VAN MATRE, HARRISON, HOLLIS, TAYLOR, AND BACON, P.C.

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW
1103 EAST BROADWAY
Post OFFICE Box 1017
COLUMBIA, MISSOURI 65201

CRAIG A. VAN MATRE (573) 874-7777

THOMAS M, HARRISON TELECOPIER (573) §75-0017

ROBERT N, HOLLIS E-MAIL roberti@yanmatre . com

GARRETT S. TAYLOR EVERETT 8. YAN MATRE
BRYAN C. Bacon* (1922-1998)
CASEY E. ELLIOTT

RICHARD B, HICKS * ADMITTED IN MISSOURI AND JLLINOIS

August 22, 2013

Nancy Thompson

City Counselor

City of Columbia

701 East Broadway

Columbia, MO 65201

Via Hand Delivery and E-mail; njthomps@gocolumbiamo.com

RE:  Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District (the “District”)
Dear Nancy,

With respect to the request for information you sent to me by e-mail on August 5, 2013,
please see the following:

I. The District was formed by order of the Circuit Court of Boone County dated
September 27, 2004, and has been amended on two occasions to modify the boundaries of the
District. The term of the District is the period of time as may be required to retire any bonds,
notes, or other obligations of the District that are issued to finance its transportation projects.

2. Accompanying this letter, please find a copy of the most recent budget, report of
an independent auditor, and the most recent, monthly financial statement prepared by the
accountants for the District.

3. The projects that have been completed by the District are many and are best
described in the applicable engineering plans and specifications (copies of which are available
for review as part of the District’s records). As an attempt to respond to your request with a
manageable amount of information, please see the following brief summary of the District
projects and substantial expenditures:

a. Improvements to Stadium Boulevard, Worley Street, and Ash Street per
plans and specifications approved by MoDOT and the City, including the widening of
and construction of additional lanes, medians, and appurtenant structures for those roads.
The most prominent portion of this work seen by the general public is the “right-in/right-
out” and additional lanes on Stadium Boulevard between Ash Street and Worley Street as
wel] as a median/safety divider that was required by MoDOT.

G TERESA'WIPWIN\Kroenke!Biscayne-Shoppes at StadiumiLtr to Nancy Thampson, City Counselor RE [nformation en Transportation Projects 8.22.13 docx



b. Pursuant to the Missouri Highway and Transportation Commission
Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District Cooperative Agreement, the
District acquired right of way for and break in access from MoDOT.

C. Drainage and landscaping improvements adjacent to Stadium Boulevard.

d. Sidewalks adjacent to Worley Street and Ash Street.

€. Substantial stormwater improvements pursuant to plans approved by the
City of Columbia.

We expect for this matter to be considered by the City Council on September 3, 2013.
Please feel free to contact me if you need additional information or have questions regarding the
aforementioned. Thank you for your attention to this matter

Sincerely,

Van Matre, Harrison, Hollis, Taylor, and Bacon, P.C.

By: %////7 )

RaBert N. Hollis

RNH/jae
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BUDGET MESSAGE

EXPLANATION OF FUNDS AND BUDGET SUMMARY
This information is for the period beginning January 1, 2013 and ending December 31, 2013.
Checking Account,

e Total estimated revenue of §0
» Total estimated expenses of $0

Revenue Fund.
¢ Total estimated revenue of 36
o Total estimated expenses of §8,463
¢ Total estimated transfers in of $320,017
e Total estimated transfers out of $303,000

Debt Service Fund.

e Total estimated revenue of $J
e Total estimated interest payments of $123,000
s Total estimated transfers in of $123,000

Debt Service Reserve Fund.

e Total estimated revenue of $17
s Total estimated transfers out of $17

Project Fund.

o Total estimated revenue of $0
s Total estimated expenses of 30

Operating Fund.

= Total estimated transfers in of $25,000
e Total estimated expenses of 324,071

Redemption Fund.
o Total estimated revenue of §1
« Total estimated bond/note redemptions of §155,000
+ Total estimated transfers in of $155,000

Sales Tax Trust Fund.

o Total estimated revenue of $320,000
s Total estimated transfers out of $320,000



BUDGET PERIOD

This budget relates to the periods (1) beginning January 1, 2012 and ending December 31, 2012 and (2)
beginning January 1, 2013 and ending December 31, 2013.

Respectfully Submitted,




AMENDED BUDGET FOR
FISCAL YEAR ENDING
DECEMBER 31, 2012

AND
BUDGET FOR

FISCAL YEAR ENDING
DECEMBER 31, 2013



Collections
Sales Tax Revenue
Toterest

Tetat Coliectiens

Disbursements
Lepal Fees
Trustee Fees
Audi Fees
Aceounting
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Monitoring
Debt Service
Interest

Tetal Disbursainents

Bond Acrivity

Bond Proceeds

Capital Expenditures
Note/Bond Redemnption
Total Bond Activity

Increase {deerease) i cash
{ash balance at beginning of period

Cash balance at end of period

*As of August 35, 2012

Notes/Bands Payable Reconctlation

Bepinning balance
Proceads from note/bond Jssuance
Principal payments

Ending Balance

Shoppes al Stadium TDD
Fiscal Year Comparison

W1 2052 2012 Budget 2012 Budget 2012 (Year to Dute} 013
(Actual) {Year to Date)* (Original) {Amended) {Budgel vs. Actunl) Budget

s 2702304 5 214,136 39 $ 270,000.00 $ 320,000.00 5 (105263611 § 320,000.00

3180 2115 3100 24.50 {31.35) 24.50

270,261.90 214,757.54 270,031.00 320,024.50 {105,266.96) 320,024.5¢

10.873.90 31,000.00 15,000.00 £5.600,00 {12,860.00} 15,000.00

1.478.00 292606 1,463.00 2.926.00 - 1.463.00

2,975.00 - 2.975.00 2.975.00 {2,975.004 3,100.00

8.273.32 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,004.00 - 4,000.00

47100 - 147100 1.471.00 (1.471.00) 1,471.00

§.406.78 522,69 1,500490 1.500.00 (97734 500.00

7,000.00 3.500.00 7.000.00 3.500.00 - 100000

128,006.25 52.075.00 125,350.00 123,862.50 (61, 187500 123.000.00

161,484 25 76.623.4Y 158.759.00 155,234.50 {78.610.81) 155,334.00
175,000.00) 170,000.00) {110,000.00) (155 000.00) 85,000.00 {155.000.00)
(75,000.00) {70,000.00) £110,000.003 (155 000.00} £5,000.00 {155,000.00)

33,778.65 48,133.85 1.272.00 Q.790.00 58,341.85 9,490.5¢

275,851 91 309,631.56 309,631,530 309.631.56 - 319.421.36

3 309.631.56 $ 3171,765.41 3 110,903 .56 b3 319.421,56 3 58,343.85 $ 328.912.06

2011 Wi 2002 Budlper 1012 Budget 1012 (Year 1o Date} 2013
{Actual) {Year to Date}* (Orlginal) {Amended) {Budget vs. Actual) Budget

$ 4,098,379.00 3 4,023,379.00 $ 4,023,379.00 $ 4,023,379.00 3 - 5 3,868,379.00
(75.000.00} (70,000,000 (1§0,000.00) (155.000.00) (45,000.00) {§55,000.00)

§  4023379.00 $  3053379.00 8 3,913,379.0¢ g 3.868.,3749.00 3 (85,000.00) _§ 3,713,379.00




2011
(Actual}
Collections
Saies Tax Revenuc [ .
Interest

Shoppes at Stadivm TDD
Checking Accouat Comparison

2012
{Year 10 Prare)

1052 Budget
{Original)

2011 Budged
{Amended)

2082 (Year to Date)
{Budget vs, Actus])

b2

213
Budpget

Total {ollections

Ditbursements
Legal Fees
Trusice Fees -
Audit Tees -
Accounting -
fusurance
Miscellaneous
Momlonng
Debl Service

inlerest -

Total Disbursements .

Increase (decrease) in cash from operations

Bond Achvity

Bond Frocesds -
Capital Expendilures -
Note/Bond Redemption .

Increase (decreass) m cash from bond activity

Fund Trapsfers
Transfers in -
Transiers out .

Total fund iransfers -

Increase (decrease) in cash .
Cash balance 21 bepinning of pened 80.5%

80.58

B0D.58

80.58

80,58

Cash batance ar end of period 3 §0.58

b3

80.53

8

80.58

3

80.5%

% -

89.58

a9



Shoppes at Stadicm TDD
Revenue Fund Comparison

082 1012 1012 Budget 1012 Bodgel 2012 {Year to Date) 1013

(Actual) {Yeur o Date) {Original) {Amended) {Budget v, Acrual) Budyet
Collections
Sales Tax Revenye 1 - 5 - s - 5 - 3 - $ -
Interest 507 4.7% 509 6.00 (121} 6.00
Tatal Callections 5.07 4.79 500 6,00 (1.21) 6.00
Dsburserents
Lepal Fees - - . . B
Trustes Fees 1,483.00 1,926.00 1,363 .00 1,926,008 1,463 00
Audit Fees - - . - - .
Accounting . . . . .
Tnsurance - - . - - .
Miscellaneous - . - - . .
Monitoriog 1,000.06 3,500.00 7.000.00 3,500.00 - 7.000.00
Debt Service -

Enterest - - - - - -
Total Disbursenents %,463.00 6416.00 8.463.G0 5,476.00 - 8,463.00
Increase {decrease) in cash from aperations (8,457.93) (6,421.21) (8,458.000 (6,420.00} 1.2 (H.457.00)
Bood Activity
Bund Proceeds - . - - -

Capital Expenditures - - - - -

Note/Bond Redemption : - - . . .
Increase fdecrease) in cash from bond activiry : - - - - -
Fund Transfers

Transfers in 17),231.04 214,736 39 276,600,060 320,069.52 {103,333.13}y 320,016.50

Transfers out (239.908.71) {(50,279.391 (260,329.96) __[303.200.51) 152,921.82 {302.959.96)
Trust fund wanshers 19.520.33 64,457 00 5.670.04 16.869.0] 47,587.99 i7.016.54
Increase {decrease} in cash 36,364 40 58,035.79 £212.04 10.449.01 47,586.78 §,559.54
(ash balance at beginming of period 35.815.82 60,680.22 66,680.02 66.680.22 - 77,129.23
Cash balance 8t end of period 3 &6 680.22 3 124.716.01 3 5789236 % 77,029.23 $ 47.580.78 3 B3 6BR.77




(ollections
Sales Tax Revenue
interest

Teta! Collections

Disburserents
Legal Fees
Trustee Fees
Audil Fees
Accountiug
Insuranee
Mistellaneous
Monioriag
Debt Service
Intesest

Totai Bisbursements
Increase (decrease} in cash from cperations
Bond Activity
Bond Proceeds
Capi1ai Expendilures
Nate/Bond Redemption
Increase {decrease) in cazh from bond activity
Fand Trapsfers
Transfers in
Transfers cut

Torat fund transfers

Iacrease {decrease) in cash
(Cash balance a1 beginning of period

Cash balamee a1 end of period

Shoppes a1 Stadivm TDD
Debt Service Fund Comparison

3011 2012 2012 Budget 2012 Budget 2012 (Year to Date) 03
(Actual} {Year 10 Date) (Original} {Amended) {Budget vs, Achal) Budeet
- I - $ - § - s - .
1.66 0.86 240 i.00 {0.14) 100
1.66 0.86 .00 1.0 0.14, 100
123‘006:25 62,675.00 135,350,00 123,862,50 {61,187.50) 123,000.00
128,006.25 61,675.00 125,350.00 123.862.50 {6],187.50) 123 006.00
{128,004.59) (62,674.14) {125,348.00 (123.861.50) 41,182.26 {122,565.00)
138.004.61 62,674.16 125.350,00 123,87) 84 {61,197.68) 123.500.00
128,004".61 62.6?4-.1(1 I'_’S,SSOV.OO 513‘871..84 (61,197;681 123,000;00
0.02 0.02 Tau 10.34 (10,323 1 .0
0.82 0.84 0.84 034 - .18
0.84 5 086 S 2.84 1 U8 % (16.33) 12.18




Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Debt Service Reserve Fund Comparison

2611 2012 2012 Budget 2012 Budger 2012 (vear to Dste) 013
{Actual) {Year tv Date) {Qriglmal} (Amended) {Badget vs. Actugl} Rudget
Collcetions
Sales Tax Revenve $ - 3 . %

- . $ . .
interest 31.90 14.64 2004 16.50 {1.86) 16.50

Totat Colicctions 219 13.64 30.00 16.50 {1.86) 16.50

Disbursemeuts
Lepal Fees - - - . - .
Trustee Fees - - - R . .
Audit Fees - - .
Accounting - - . .
Insurance - - . - .
Miscellanzcus - - . - N
Monitoring - - - - -
Debs Service
interest - . - . .

Total Disbursements - - - . -

Increase {decrease) in cash from operations 3090 i4.64 20400 16,50 {1.86} 16.50

Bond Activity

Bond Proceeds 5 . H - b - 5 - - s -
Capital Expenditures - - - R - .
NotefBond Redemption - . . . . .

Increase (deerease) in cash from bond activity - - - - -

Fund Transfers
Transéers in - - - -
TFransfers out 121,984 (1092} {20.00) (21.96) 1.04 (1550
Total fund transfers {21500 (16.92) {20.603 (21.90) 11.04 (18,50}

Tncreass (decrease) in cash - 372 . (5.46) 918 -
("ash balance at beginning of period 233 10546 235 105.96 235.105.46 234,105.46 - 215,100.00

Cash balance at end of period 3 135.105.46 ) 135,109,186 3 23510596 ] 235,100.00 M RRL] s 235.100.00




Collections
Sales Tax Revenue
Lnterest

Totat Collecrions

Disbursements
Lepat Fees
Trustec Fees
Audit Fees
Accouniing
[nsurance
Miscelianeous
Moniloring
Debt Service
Interest

Total Disbursements.
Lnicrease {derrease) in cash from eperstions
Bond Activity
Bond Proceeds
Capital Expenditures
Wore/Bond Redemption
Inciease {decrease) in cash from boad activity
Fund Transfers
Transfess in
Transfers out

Total fund transfery

Increase (decrease) in cagh
Cash balance at beginning of perind

Cash balance at end of period

2411
{Actual)

Shppes at Stadium TDD
Project Fund Comparison

W11
(Year to Nate}

2012 Budget

(Originaly

1012 Budget
(Amended)

1011 (Year to Dute)
(Budget vs, Aclual)

3

013
Budget




Collectinns
Sales Tax Revenue
Enterest

Totsi Coitections

Iisbursements
Legal Fess
Trustee Fees
Audit Fees
Actcousiing
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Monitosing
Debt Service
Interest

Total Dishursements
Incrénse (Jocrease) in cash from operations
Bond Activity
Bend Procesds
Capiipl Expenditures
Nole/Bond Redemplion
Increase [decrease) in cash from bond activity
Fund Transfers
Transfors in
Transfers out

Totat fund iransfers

Increase {decrease) in cash
Cash balance gt beginning of peried

Cash balance ot end of penad

Shoppes at Stadizm TD
Opetaring Fund Comparison

FL I 2082 2017 Badge! 2011 Budget 1012 (Year w Daie} 2013
{Actunl) (Year to Date) (Origingl} (Amended) {Budipet vi. Actosly Budzet

- 4 . - - 5 R $ R

1.12 - 1.00 - -

112 1.00 - -
10,873.90 3,000.90 15,000.00 15,000.00 (12.000.00) 1500000
297500 - 2,0975.00 2,975.00 (2.975.00) 3,100.00
8,27332 4.000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 B 4,000,00
1 471.00 - 1,471.80 1,471 .00 (1.471,00% 1.471.00
1,406.73 532469 1, 50000 1,500.00 7130 $00.00
2500000 7,522.68 34,946.00 24,946.00 (17,423.31) 24071.00
124,995 88} (7,521.69) (14,9435.00) (24,946.00) 17,413.31 {24.071.00)

1 - - - $

24,964 91 16,606.64 24,969 94 24,999.96 (8.33330) 24,909.96
14.964.01 16.666.64 24.999.96 24,999 56 (8.333.32} 24 999 .96
(3437 5,143.9% 54,96 53.96 4.089.99 424.94
4201 80 416693 4,166.93 34,1669 - 4,220 .39
416683 § 13.310.88 4321 39 @280 9,089 5.149.85




Collectiony
Sales Tax Revenue
Imterest

Tatal Coliections

Disbursements
Lepal Fees
Trustee Fees
Audit Fees
Arcounting
Tnsorance
Miscellaneous
Monitenng
Debt Service
Interest

Total Disburserents
locrease (decrease) an cash from aperations
Bond Activity
Bond Proceeds
Capital Expenditures
NowBond Redemption
[ncrepse {decrease) in cash from bond activity
Fund Transfecs
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total fznd transfers

Inereasc {decrease) in eash
Cash balance at bepinning of peried

{"ash baiance at end of peried

Shopaes a1 Stadinm TOD
Redemplion Fund Comparison

2011 2012 2012 Budget 2012 Bodger 1012 {Year to Date) 2013
{Actusl} {Year to Date} {Original} {Amended) {Badget vy. Actual) Budget

- . 4 - . 5 . .
G.33 CAR& £.00 1.00 ©.14 1,00
0.83 0.86 i00 1.00 {0.14} 1.00
083 086 100 1.00 0.34) 100

- $ - - . -
{75.600.00) (76.000.00) (110,000.00) (155,000.00) 85.000.00 {155.000.00)
{75,000.00) (70,000.00) (110,000.06} (155,000.00) $5.000.00 (155.000.00)
7796199 70,949 51 110 H00.00 154,350.67 {83,401.16} 135,000.00
7196199 70,949,531 E1{.000.00 154,350.6% (83,401,160} 153,000,600
256282 950.37 L0 {64331 1,598,70 1.60
465.1% 242801 3,428 01 3.428.01 - 1779.68
3428.01 #4,378.38 3 3.429.01 2,779.68 b3 1,598.70 1 780 68

sty




Collections
Sates Tax Revenoe
nlerest

Total Collections

Disbursements
Lepal Fees
Trustee Fees
Audit Foes
Accounting
Tasurance
Miscellancous
Moniloring
Debt Service
Inrercst

Tonal Disbursements
lncrease {decrease) in cash from eperations

Bond Activity

Bond Proceeds

Capital Expendilures
Note/Bond Redemption

Increase {decrease) m cash from boad aclivity
Fund Teansfers

Transters in

“Eransfers ol
Totwal fund transfers

Increase [decrease) in cash
Cnsh balance &l bepmmng of period

Cask halance at enid of period

Shoppes at Stadism TDD
Saies Tax Revenve Fund Companson

2011 2012 2412 Budget 2012 Budget 2012 (Year to Date) 2013
{Actual} (Year te Date) {Oviginal} (Amended) {Budget va. Actual) Rudget
370,131.04 214,736,19 b3 270,050.00 3 320,000.00 3 (105,263,610 320.000.5)
1.28 . 2.00 . . .
270,232 32 214,736.39 370,002.80 320,000.00 {105263.61) 320,400,090
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Columbia, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of
Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended December 31,
2011, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of Shoppes at Stadium Transportation
Development District, as of December 31, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position, thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2012, on our
consideration of Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Independent Auditor's Report {Concluded)

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis on pages 3 through 5 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmentai Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Wade Srablss 7e.

Wade Stables P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
June 29, 2012
Hannibal, Missouri
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Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District

Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

The discussion and analysis of Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District’s financial performance
provides an overview and analysis of the District's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2011. It
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying independent auditor's report and the accompanying basic
financial statements,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

« The liabilities of Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District exceeded its assets at the close of the
year ending December 31, 2011, by $2,098,438 (net assets). The District had restricted net assets for the
payment of principal and/or interest on the bonds in the amount of $238,534.

« The District's total net assets decreased by $49,997 for the year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease in net
assets can be attributed to the sales tax revenues being less than the amounts for fees, amortization expense,
interest expense and other project and operating costs for the year.

« The District paid $128,008 in interest on bonds for year ending December 31, 2011.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development
District's basic financial statements. Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District's basic financial
statements are comprised of two components, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial statements.
Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a
manner similar to private-sector business. The basic financial statements of the District include the Statement of
Net Assets as of December 31, 2011 and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances for the year ended December 31, 2011,

The District’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State
and Local Governments and related standards. GASB Statement No. 34 requires governmental entities to report
their basic financial statements using two sets of financial statements: governmental fund financial statements and
government-wide financial statements.

The District's statements combine the governmental fund and the government-wide financial statements and show
a reconciliation column to explain the differences between these two required reporting formats of the District's
financial activites. The government fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. The government-wide financial statements include the
statement of net assets and the statement of activiies and changes in net assets. The balance sheet
(governmental fund) report only current assets and liabilities while the statement of net assets (government-wide)
report current year's revenues and expenses using the modified accrual basis of accounting, while the statement of
activities (government-wide) report current year's revenues and expenses using the accrual basis of accounting.

Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District internalty maintains five governmental funds, however to
conform to Governmental Accounting Standards, reporting is summarized into two major funds. Information is
presented in the Statement of Net Assets for the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund, which are considered
major funds. The General Fund consists of: the Revenue Fund and Operating Fund. The Debt Service Fund
consists of the Debt Service Fund and Debt Service Reserve Fund.



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately
following the basic financial statements.

The District as a Whole — Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The total net assets for the District are reported in the Statement of Net Assets on the accrual basis of accounting.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, the District’s net assets decreased by $49,997.

Net Assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Assets
Cash and equivalents $ 309,832 275,853
Sales tax revenue receivable 67,707 60,245
Other Assets 2,066,049 2,061,472
Total Assets $ 2433,388 $ 2,397,570
Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ 61,747 3 57,389
Accrued interest 448,700 290,243
Bonds and Notes payable 4,023,379 4,098,379
Total Liabilities $ 4,531,826 $ 4446011
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (2,414,030} {2,327,150)
Restricted for debt service 238,534 235,571
Unrestricted 77,058 43,138
Total Net Assets $ (2,098,438) $ (2,048,441)
Total Liahilities and Net Assets $ 2,433,388 $ 2,397,570

At the close of the District’s year on December 31, 2011, the governmental funds of the District reported total
assets of $2,433,388.



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Statement of Activities for the Year Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Sales tax revenue 3 277,693 $ 214,305
Investment income 32 30
Operating expenses (327,722) (306,543)
Change in Net Assets 3 (49,997) $ (92,208)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year (2,048,441) (1,856,233)
Net Assets, End of Year $ (2,098,438) $ (2,048,441)

BUDGETING HIGHLIGHTS

The District did not approve a budget for the year ended December 31, 2011.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

Local, national and international economic factors influence the District's revenues. Positive economic growth
correlates with increased revenues from sales taxes. Economic growth in the local economy may be measured by a
variety of indicators such as employment growth, unemployment, new construction, and assessed valuations. The
District has prepared its budget for the next year considering the economic factors discussed above.
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a

general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional information, please contact the District.
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Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Statement of Net Assets and Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet

December 31, 2011

Total
General Debt Service Governmental Statement
Fund Fund Funds Adjustments _of Net Assets
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and equivalents $ 71008 § 238534 309632 % - 3 309,632
Sales tax revenue receivable 67,707 - 67,707 - 67,707
Total Current Assets $ 138805 § 238534 377,338 % - § 377,339
Other Assets
Bond issuance costs $ - % - - % 134219 3 134,219
Less accumulated amortization - - - {37,057} (37.057)
Net Bond lssuance Costs $ -3 - -3 97162 % 97,162
Site improvements - - - 1,958,887 1,858,887
Total Other Assets $ - 8 - - $ 2056049 $ 2,056,049
Total Assets $ 138805 § 238534 377339  $ 2,056,049 $ 2433388
Liabilities and Fund Balance / Net Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 61747 % - 61747 % - % 61,747
Accrued interest - - - 446,700 448,700
Notes payable - due after one year - - - 1,648,379 1,548,379
Bonds payable - due after one year - - - 2,475,000 2,475,000
Total Liahilities $ 61,747 % - 61,747 § 4470079 % 4531826
Fund Balance:
Restricted for debt service $ - $ 238534 238534 $ (238534) % -
Unassigned 77,058 - 77.058 {77,058) -
Total Liahilities and Fund Balance $ 138805 § 238,634 377339 $ 4154487 $ 4531826
Net Assets {Deficit):
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ (2,414,030) $ (2,414.030)
Restricted for debt service 238,534 238,534
Unrestricted 77,058 77,058
Total Net Assets (Deficit) $ (2,098,438) § (2098438}
Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit) $ 2,056,048 § 2433388

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this staterment.




Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 3 315,592

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
because:

Site improvements are not a current financial resource and is not reported in the fund. 1,958,887
Governmental funds report payment of bond issuance costs as expenditures in the current
period. However, in the statement of activities, the expense is allocated over the life of the

bond. This is the amount of the bond issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization of 97,162

The bonds and notes payable are not due in the current period and, therefore, are not reported

in the fund. (4,023,379)
Accrued interest is not due in the current period and, therefore, is not reported in the fund. (446,700)
Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities $ (2,098,438)

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integraf part of this statement.



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Statement of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Expenditures/Expenses:
Administrative expenses
Amortization expense
Audit fee
Interest expense
Legal fees
Insurance expense
Accounting fees
Bank charges
Engineering fees

Total Expenditures/Expenses

General Revenues:
Sales tax revenue
Investment income

Total General Revenues

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Bond principal payments

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess {Deficiency} of Revenues and Other
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses

Change in net assets
Fund balance/net assets:
Beginning of Year

End of Year

Total
General Debt Service Governmental Statement
Fund Fund Funds Adjustments _ of Activities
7,867 % - % 7867 % - 8 7,867
- - - 5423 5,423
2,975 - 2,975 - 2,975
- 128,008 128,006 156,457 284,483
20,045 - 20,045 - 20,045
1,471 - 1,471 - 1,471
4,000 - 4,000 - 4,000
1,478 - 1,478 - 1478
37836 % 128006 $ 165842 § 161,880 § 327,732
277693 % - % 277693 $ - % 277693
8 24 32 - 32
277,701 $ 24 % 271725 § - § 277725
230865 $ (127.082) § 111,883 § (161880; 3 (49,997)
- 3 205945 § 230,93 $ - % 230931
(205,845) - (230,931) - (230,931)
- (75,000} (75,000) 75,000 -
(205,045) % 130,945 § (750000 § 75000 % -
33920 % 2963 % 36,883 § (36883 § -
- - - (49,997) (49,997)
43,138 235,571 278,709 (2,327,150) (2,048,441)
77058 % 238534 $ 315502 $(2.414,030) _§ (2,098438)

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this staterment.



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 5 36,883

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different

because:

Reduction of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the reduction

reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. 75,000

Amortization expense on deferred charges is reported in the government-wide statement of
activities and changes in net assets, but they do not require the use of current financial
resources. Therefore, amortization expense is not reported as an expenditure in

governmental funds. (5,423)
In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds, whereas, in

governmental funds, they are reported when due. {156,457)
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ (49,997)

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 9



Notes to the
Financial Statements



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District (the “District”) is a political subdivision of the state of
Missouri created on September 27, 2004 under the Missouri Transportation Development District Act, sections
238.200 through 238.280 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. The District was established for
the purpose of funding transportation projects authorized in the Judgment, Order and Decree Granting Petition
for the formation of a transportation development district by the Circuit Court of Boone County date September
27, 2004, as expanded by Judgment, Order, and Decree Granting Petition to adjust the boundaries of the
District entered September 25, 2008, and sections 238.200 to 238.280 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as
amended through the imposition of the transportation development district sales tax ("TDD Sales Tax")
pursuant to section 238.235 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. The TDD Sales Tax was
approved by the qualified voters of the District as the District’s funding method and became effective upon the
adoption of a resolution by the District’s board of directors and notification of the Director of Revenue of the
adoption of such resolution in accordance with section 238.235 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as
amended. The District may impose the TDD Sales Tax at a rate of one half of one percent (2%) on all retail
sales made in the District which are subject to taxation pursuant to the provisions of Sections 144.010 to
144 525 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, except such TDD Sales Tax does not apply to the sale or use of
motor vehicles, trailers, boats or outboard motors nor to all sales of electricity or electrical current, water and
gas, natural and artificial, nor to sales of service to telephone subscribers, either local or long distance.
Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District operates under a Board of Directors for the purpose
of financing the Transportation Project.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are
included to insure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government
consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District
is financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s
governing board and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or
provided by the organization; or (2) the District is legally entitied to or can otherwise access the organization's
resources: the District is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of,
or provide financial support to, the organization; or the District is obiigated for the debt of the organization.
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District in that the District
approves the budget, the issuance of debt, or the levying of taxes. The District has no component units.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB}) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The most significant of the District’s accounting
policies are described below.

A. Basis of Presentation

Special purpose governments engaged in a single governmental program and having no component units
may present financial statements combining fund financial statements with government-wide statements.
This is illustrated on page 6 for Statements of Net Assets and Governmental Fund Balances and page 8 for
Statements of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the District are organized on the
basis of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate
accounting entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or other financial resources
together with all related liabilites and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance
with special regulations, restrictions or limitations. The fund statements are presented on an accrual basis
of accounting.

10



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

A. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Governmental Funds

Genera! Fund — The District internally maintains two separate funds that make up the General Fund, as
follows:

Revenue Fund -

(a)

Moneys in the Revenue Fund on the 40" day (except as otherwise provided below) prior to each
payment date (or if such date is not a business day, the immediately preceding business day) shall
be applied by the Trustee to the extent necessary for the purposes and in the amounts as follows:

First, for transfer to the Bond Payment Account of the Debt Service Fund an amount sufficient to pay
the interest on the Bonds on the next succeeding payment date;

Second, for transfer to the Bond Payment Account of the Debt Service Fund an amount sufficient to
pay the principal of and premium, if any, due on the Bonds by their terms on the next succeeding
payment date;

Third, for transfer to the Debt Service Reserve Fund such amount as may be required to restore any
deficiency in the Debt Service Reserve Fund if the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve
Fund is less than the Debt Service Requirement;

Fourth, pay to the Trustee or any Paying Agent, an amount sufficient for payment of any fees and
expenses which are due and owing to the Trustee or any Paying Agent, upon delivery to the District
of an invoice for such amounts; and pay to the Monitor an amount sufficient for payment of any
reasonable and necessary fees and expenses which are due and owing to the Monitor, upon delivery
to the District of an invoice for such amounts (provided, however, that payments to the Trustee may
not exceed $1,800 in any calendar year and payments to the Monitor may not exceed $7,000 in any
calendar year);

Fifth, for transfer to the Redemption Account of the Debt Service Fund, which shall be applied to the
payment of the principal of and accrued interest on all Bonds which are subject to redemption on the
next succeeding payment date pursuant to Section 302(b) of the Trust Indenture;

Upon the payment in full of the principal of and interest on the Bonds (or provision has been made for
the payment thereof as specified in the Trust Indenture) and the fees, charges and expenses of the
Trustee and any Paying Agent, and any other amounts required to be paid under the Trust Indenture,
all amounts remaining on deposit in the Revenue Fund shall be paid to the District for deposit into the
Transportation Development District Sales Tax Trust Fund.

Operating Fund - Money in the Operating Fund shall be disbursed by the Trustee from time to time
upon receipt of a written request of the Authorized District Representative to pay costs of operating the
District, maintaining the Transportation Project, paying the principal of or interest on the Bonds, or any
other lawful purpose of the District.

11



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Basis of Presentation (Concluded)

Debt Service Fund — The District internally maintains two separate funds that make up the Debt Service
Fund, as follows:

Debt Service Fund - All amounts paid and credited to the Debt Service Fund shall be expended solely
for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same
mature and become due or upon the redemption therect.

Debt Service Reserve Fund -

(@)

Moneys in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used by the Trustee without further authorization
solely for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds if moneys otherwise available for
such purpose as provided in Section 403 of the Trust Indenture are insufficient to pay the same as
they become due and payable. If the balance of moneys in the Debt Service Fund is insufficient to
pay principal of or interest on the Bonds when due and payable, moneys in the Debt Service Reserve
Fund shall be transferred into the Debt Service Fund in an amount sufficient to make up such
deficiency. The Trustee may use moneys in the Debt Service Reserve Fund for such purpose
whether or not the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund at that time equals the Debt Service
Reserve Requirement. Such moneys shall be used first to make up any deficiency in the payment of
interest and then principal. Moneys in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall also be used to pay the
last Bonds becoming due unless such Bonds and all interest thereon be otherwise paid. The amount
on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be valued by the Trustee 45 days prior to each
payment date (or if such date is not a business day, the immediately preceding business day). The
Trustee shall give prompt written notice to the District if such amount is less than the Debt Service
Reserve Requirement. For the purpose of determining the amount on deposit in the Debt Service
Reserve Fund, the value of any investments shall be valued at their fair market value (inclusive of
accrued interest) on the date of valuation. Moneys in the Debt Service Reserve Fund that are in
excess of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement shall be deposited by the Trustee without further
authorization in the Debt Service Fund.

After payment in full of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds (or
provision has been made for the payment thereof as specified in the Trust Indenture), and the fees,
charges and expenses of the Trustee and any Paying Agents and any other amounts required to be
paid under the Indenture, all amounts remaining in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be paid to
the District for transfer into the Transportation Development District Sales Tax Trust Fund.

B. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

12



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The District should follow these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1)

2)

3)

In accordance with Section 87 of the Missouri Revised Statutes, the budget officer, as designated by
the District, prepares and adopts an annual budget which represents the complete financial plan for the
ensuing budget year. The budget includes at least the following information:

a) A budget message describing the important features of the budget and major changes from the
preceding year,

b) Estimated revenues to be collected from all sources for the budget year, with a comparative
statement of actual or estimated revenues for the two years next preceding, itemized by year, fund,
activity and object;

¢) The amount required for the payment of interest, amortization, and redemption charges on the debt
of the District;

d) A general budget summary.

In no event shall the total proposed expenditures from any fund exceed the estimated revenues to be
received plus any unencumbered balance or less any deficit estimated for the beginning of the budget
year.

The District may revise, alter, increase or decrease the items in the proposed budget, subject to such
limitations as may be provided by law provided, that in no event, shall the total authorized expenditures
from any fund exceed the estimated revenues to be received plus any unencumbered balance or less
any deficit estimated for the beginning of the budget year.

The District shall, before the beginning of the year, approve the budget and approve or adopt such
orders, motions, resolutions or ordinances as may be required to authorize the budgeted expenditures
and produce the revenues in the budget.

After the District has approved the budget and approved or adopted the orders, motions, resolutions or
ordinances required to authorize the expenditures proposed in the budget, the District shall not
increase the total amount authorized for expenditure from any fund, unless the District adopts a
resolution setting forth the facts and reasons making the increase necessary and approves or adopts
an order, motion, resolution or ordinance to authorize the expenditures.

The District did not approve a budget for the year ended December 31, 2011.

D. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amount
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

13



Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Concluded)

E.

G.

Site Improvements

Site improvements include right-of-way purchases, infrastructure improvements, professional fees such as
lega! expenditures incurred as part of the infrastructure, and engineering fees. At completion, the project
becomes the property of the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission or the City of Columbia,
Missouri, as appropriate.

Deferred Charges

Deferred charges consist of bond issuance costs of $134,219 amortized over the life of the Bonds
(approximately 25 years), with a resulting amortization charge of $5,423 for the year ended December 31,
2011.

Fund Balance and Net Assets

Net Assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net Assets are reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by laws or regulations of the government.

All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” are reported as unrestricted net assets.

As of these financial statements, the District has adopted GASB Statement No. 54, which redefined how
fund balances of the governmental funds are presented in the financial statements. Fund balances are
classified as follows:

Nonspendable- This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not
in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The District did not
have any nonspendable fund balances as of December 31, 2011.

Restricted- This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the
resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors,
contributors, or law or regulations of other governments, or (b} imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. The District had an ending balance of $238,534 for restricted fund
balances that consisted of the Debt Service Fund.

Committed- This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the District's Board. These amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the Board removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action
(ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification
also includes contractual cbligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed
for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The District had no committed resources as of
December 31, 2011,

Assigned- This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the District's intent to be used for a

specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the District
Board through budgetary process. The District had no assigned resources as of December 31, 2011,
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Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

1)

2)

3)

4)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Concluded)
G. Fund Balance and Net Assets (Concluded)
Unassigned- All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

Beginning fund balances for the District's governmental funds have been restated to reflect the above
classifications.

The District would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resources, and then
Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend
Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.

Cash and Investments

The District complies with various restrictions on deposits and investments, which are imposed by State
Statutes as follows:

Deposits - All deposits with financial institutions must be coltateralized in an amount at least equal to uninsured
deposits.

Investments - The District may invest in bonds of the State of Missouri or any wholly owned corporation of the
United States; or in other short-term obligations of the United States.

Deposits and Investments

As of December 31, 2011, the District had demand deposits account with a combined carrying value of $250
and bank balances of $250. The balances in these accounts were fully covered by federal depository
insurance. As of December 31, 2011, the District had deposits totaling $309,382 with the Trustee. All deposits
with the Trustee were invested in Fidelity U.S. Treasury Money Market accounts,

Due to the short-term nature of investments, balances are classified as cash equivalents in the District's basic
financial statements. The Fidelity U.S. Treasury Money Market Fund is not insured by federal depository
insurance coverage. The Fund, however, invests only in direct obligations of the United States and repurchase
agreements for direct obligations of the United States.

Taxes

Qualified voters of the District, pursuant to Section 238.235 of the TDD Act, authorized TDD Sales Tax at a rate
of one half of one percent (%) on all retail sales made in the District which are subject to taxation pursuant to
the provisions of Sections 144.010 to 144.525 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, except such TDD Sales Tax
does not apply to the sale or use of motor vehicles, trailers, boats or outboard motors nor to all sales of
electricity or electrical current, water and gas, natural and artificial, nor to sales of service to telephone
subscribers, either local or long distance.

Notes Payable - Related Party

The property owner within the District agreed to advance funds to the District in the amount up to of $2,000,000
to cover administrative and capital outlay expenditures. As of December 31, 2011, the amount due on the
promissory note was $1,548,379. The interest rate on the note was equal to the prime rate on the first day of
each month plus 2%, not to exceed 10% annum. On July 1, 2010, the Notes were amended with an interest
rate equal to 10%. The Notes are due in full on October 1, 2030. No interest was paid on the note during the
year ended December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, $425,808 of accrued interest was due on the note.
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Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

§) Bonds Payable
The District issued transportation sales tax revenue bonds in the amount of $2,830,000 (the *Bonds’} on
February 15, 2005. The Bonds were issued for the purpose of providing funds to finance project costs and to
pay issuance costs related to the issuance of the Bonds.

Following is a summary of the Bonds as of December 31, 2011:

Bonds payable, January 1, 2010 $ 2,550,000
Bonds issued -
Bonds retired {75,000
Bonds payable, December 31, 2011 $ 2,475,000

Interest on the Bonds range from 3.500% to 5.375% and is payable May 1 and November 1 each year. The
total interest paid on the Bonds during 2011 was $128,006. As of December 31, 2011, $20,892 of accrued
interest was due on the Bonds.

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the District on and after November 1, 2013, in whole or in part
at any time at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest
thereon to the redemption date. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to the stated maturity thereof, on
any date, at the option of the District, using any balance remaining in the Project Account which is transferred
to the Redemption Account of the Debt Service Fund in accordance with the Trust Indenture.

The Bonds are subject to special mandatory redemption by the District on the specified payment dates at the
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the
date fixed for redemption, in an amount equal to the amount which is on deposit in the redemption account 40
days prior to each payment date. The Bonds are subject to special mandatory redemption by the District, in
whole but not in part, on any date in the event the moneys in the District's Sales Tax Trust Fund, Revenue
Fund, Debt Service Fund and Debt Service Reserve Fund are sufficient to redeem all of the bonds at a
redemption price of 100% of the bonds outstanding, plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date.

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary optional redemption by the District in whole on and after November 1,
2008, at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption
date, if the City causes the creation of a “master” transportation development district under the Transportation
Development District Act encompassing the area within which the District is located.

The following is the maturity schedule for Bonds pursuant to the Trust Indenture:

Maturity Interest Principal Amount Amount
November 1 Rate Amount Retired Remaining
2010 3.500% $ 250,000 $ (250,000) 3 -
2015 4250 335,000 (105,000) 230,000
2020 4750 515,000 - 515,000
2025 5.125 750,000 - 750,000
2029 5.375 980,000 - 980,000
Totals $ 2,830,000 $ (3550000 $ 2475000

The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the District nor does it constitute an obligation of the State
of Missouri, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission, or any agency or political subdivision of
the State other than the District. The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any
constitutional, charter, or statutory pravision, limitation or restriction.
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Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

6)

7)

8)

Cooperative Agreements

The District entered into a cooperative agreement (the “Agreement”} on October 25, 2004 with the Missouri
Highways and Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) on the completion of transportation projects
authorized in the Judgment, Order, and Decree Granting Petition for the Formation of a Transportation
Development District by the Circuit Court of Boone County dated September 27, 2004, as expanded pursuant
to Section 238.208 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri by Judgment, Order, and Decree Granting Petition to
adjust the boundaries of Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District entered September 25,
2008, and sections 238.200 to 238.280 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. Under the terms of
the Agreement, the District shall provide or cause to be provided all funding, complete and accurate plans and
specifications, surveying, and all necessary construction work, equipment and materials to complete the
improvements. The Commission shal review and study plans and specifications, review and approve utility
relocation, accept applicable portions of the improvements for maintenance into the state system after final
acceptance, and provide personnel to inspect all materials and construction work that will be accepted into the
state roadway system and to ensure that construction is proceeding in accordance with the approved plans and
specifications. Upon final acceptance of the improvements, the improvements placed on the Commission’s
right-of-way become the property of the Commission.

Litigation
There are no pending or threatened claims against the District.
Subsequent Events

On June 8, 2012, the District's Board of Directors authorized the District to increase the TDD Sales Tax from a
rate of one half of one percent (1/2%) to five-eighths of one percent (5/8%) effective October 1, 2012.

These financial statements considered subsequent events through June 29, 2012, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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CERTIFIED  PUBLILC ACCOUNTANTS

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of Shoppes at
Stadium Transportation Development District, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 28, 2012. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered
Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development
District's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting (Finding 2011-01). A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Concluded)

Compliance and QOther Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development
District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses
{Finding 2011-01).

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board of Directors and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than this specified party.

Wade Shabiss Pe.

Wade Stables P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

June 29, 2012
Hannibal, Missouri
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Shoppes at Stadium Transportation Development District
Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Significant Deficiency
Finding 2011-01 - Budgeting

Condition:
The District did not approve a budget for the year ended December 31, 2011. This is required by both State
Statute and Government Accounting Standards.

Reason Improvement Needed:
In accordance with Government Accounting Standards, and the Missouri Revised Statutes, Chapter 67, Section
67.030, a budget should be approved before the beginning of the fiscal year.

Criteria:
Management of the District is responsible for establishing effective internal control over budgeting and
compliance with laws, regulations and contract agreements.

Cause:
The Board of Directors did approve a resolution adopting a budget prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.

Response:

Management and the Board of Directors will approve future budgets of the District in compliance with State
Statutes and Government Accounting Standards.
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Assets

Cash

Checking account
Revenue fund

Debt service fund

Debt service reserve fund
Operating fund
Redemption fund

Sales tax trust fund 608

Total cash

Other current assets
A/R - Sales tax trust fund 608
Total other current assets

Total current assefs

Property and equipment

Site improvements
Bond issvance cost
Acc. amori - bond issuance

Total property and equipment

Fotal assets

Liabilities & Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued interest expense - Series A
Accrued interest expense - TKG

Total current habilities

Long-term liabilities

Bond payable - Series A
Note payable - TKG

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity
Equity
Net income
Total equity
Total liabilitics & equity

Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013

b3 R0.58
107,167.82

0.80

235,105.52
2,351.24

1,211.43

169.52

52,705.29

1,958,886.77
134,219.00

_ usinmy

b 48,862.55
18,906.26
787,011.95

2,200,000.00
1,548.379.07

(2,081,514.56)
(74,939.02)

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only

346,086.91

52,705,29

—rr——rre e

398,792.20

2,047,914.05

R hualalialt Sty

$ 2,446,706.25

£54,780.70

3,748,379.07

it e e e

4,603,159.83

(2,156,433 58}
5 2,446,706.25



Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Income Statement
For the Current Month and YTD Ending June 30, 2013

Current Month Year to Date
Actual Actunal

Revenue
Sales tax 3 32,431.94 § 203,633.63
Interest income 234 16.70
Total revenue 32,434.28 203,650.33

Expenses
Accounting fees 0.00 4,000.00
Legal fees 380.00 4,620.50
Audit fees 0.00 0.00
Insurance fees 0.00 0.00
Trustee fees 0.00 1,478.68
Engineening costs 0.09 0.00
Direct administration 0.00 3,500.00
Bond issuance amort cost 451.92 2,711.52
Interest expense - Series A 9,453.13 58,493.75
Interest expense - TKG 138,839.01 203,784.90
Misc. expense 0.00 0.00
Total expenses 149,124 .06 278,589.35
Net Income 6] 116,689.78) (% 74,939.02)

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Income Statement by Fund
For the $ix Months Ending June 30,2013

Debt
Debt Service
Checking Revenue Service Reserve Project Operating Redemption Sales Tax
Account Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Trust Fund Fund Total
Revenue
Sales tax $ 000 $ .00 $ 000 8 0.00 % 060 § 000 % 0.00 § 203,633.63 203.633.63
Interest income (.00 31.78 (.80 10.92 .00 0.00 1.20 0.00 16.70
Total revenue (.00 3.78 (.80 10.92 0.00 0.00 1.20 203,633.63 203.650.33
Expenses
Accounting fees 0.00 0.60 0.00 04.00 (.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00
Legal fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 (.00 0.00 4,620.50 (.90 0.00 4,620.50
Audit fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 G.00 0.00 4.00 0,00 .00
Insurance fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Trustec fees 0.00 147868 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 [,478.68
Engineering costs 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Drrect administration 0.00 3,500.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00
Bond issuance amort cost 0.00 0.00 (.00 0.00 2.711.52 0.00 0.0¢ 0.00 2,711.52
[nterest expense - Series A 0.00 Q.00 38,493,75 .00 0.00 0.006 0.06 0.00 58,493.75
interest expense - TKG 0.00 0.00 203.784.90 4.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ¢.00 203,784.90
Misc. expense 0.0 0.00 0.00 (.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total expenses 0.00 4.978.68 262,278.65 .00 2,71t.52 8,620.50 0.00 0.00 278,589.33
Net [ncome 3 0.00 (3 4.97490) (§262,277.85) 5 1092 (5 2,711.52) (8 8,620.50) § 120§ 203,633.63 (74,939.02)
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Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Statement of Cash Flow
For the Current Month and YTD Ending June 30, 2013

June 2013 Year to Date
Operating Activities
Net income (% 116,689.78) (3 74,939.02})
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in working capital:
Acc. amort - bond issuance 451.92 2,711.52
A/R - Sales tax trust fund 608 7.809.82 15,100.59
Accounts payable (9,829.02) (4,621.45)
Accrued interest expense - Series A 9,453.13 {887.50)
Accrued interest expense - TKG 138,838.01 203,784.90
Cash provided by operating activities 30,035.08 141,149.04
Investing Activities
Expenditures for site improvements (.00 0.00
Cash used by investing activities 0.60 (.00
Financing Activities
Principal payment - Series A 0.00 {120,000.00)
Cash used by financing activities 0.00 (120,000.00)
increase (decrease) in cash 30,035.08 21,149.04
Cash balance at beginning of period 316,051.83 324,937.87
Cash balance at end of period 5 346,086.91 3 346,086.91
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest on Series A 3 - $ 59,381.25
Interest on TK.G Notes $ - ¥ -

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Operating Activities

Net Income
Adpustments 10 reconcile nct income {loss)

10 cash provided {uscd} by operating activitics:

Changes in working capital

Act. Amor - bond issuance

AR - Sales 12x trust fund 608
Accounts payable

Accrued inferest expense - Series A
Accrued interesi expense - TKG

Cash provided by opersting sctivities

Investing Activiticy
Expendiiures for sile improvemenls

Cash used by investing activities

Financing Activities
Principal payment - Serics A

Carh wsed by ficancing achivitses

Fund Transfers

Trausfers in
Transfers cut

Total fund transhers

ngrease {decrease) in cash
{"zsh balance & begmning of period (33201

{ash kalance at end of period

Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Statement of Cash Flow by Fund

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

Checking Revenue Debt Service Debt Service Praject Operating Redem ption Sales Tax Fund
Account Fund Fund Reserve Fund Fund Fund Fund Trust Fund Total
000 (% 497490y (5 262,277.85) 1092 (8 2711520 (& R6205% % (20 5 203,63363 (3 TA9N0Y
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2711.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,711.52
0.00 0.00 0.60 0.00 G.00 0.00 .00 15,100.59 15,100.59
0.00 ¢.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (4,621.45) 0.00 0.00 (4.621.45)
0.00 G.00 (887.50) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 {887.50)
0.00 0.00 203,784.90 (.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 203,784,590
0.00 (4.974.90) (59,380 45) 10.92 0.00 (13,241.95) 1.20 218,734.22 141,149.04
0.00 0.006 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.0¢ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 $.00 0.00 n.0¢ 0.00 0.00 (120,000.00) 0.00 {126,000.00)
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0¢ (120,000.50) 0.00 (120.000.00)
0.00 218,734.22 59,380.4% 0.00 0.00 12,499.98 118,439.93 0.00 409,044.62
2.00 (190,299.34) 0.06 (11.06) 0.00 0.00 0.00 {218,734.22) {409,044.02)}
n.00 28.434.88 59,380.49 (11.06) 0.00 12,499.9% 115.428.93 (218,734.22) 0.60
0.00 23,459.93 0.04 {0.14) 0.00 (741.97) (1,568.87) 0.00 21,149.64
80.58 §3,707.84 0.76 235,105.66 0.6o 3.093.21 2.780.30 169.52 32493787
80.58 $§ 107,167.82 ) 0.80 $ 23510552 3 - S 2,351.24 $ 121143 S 169,52 346,086.91

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only



Shoppes at Stadium

Transportation Development District

Supplementary Information




Shoppes at Stadium TDD

Bank Reconciliation

Account Title: Checking Account

Account #; 1128590

Statement Perivd: 6/1/2013 - 6/30/2013

Bank: Boone County National Bank

Ending Balance from Bank Statement

Add Deposits in Transit:

Deposit Date Amount

Total Deposits in Transit

Subtract Outstanding Checks:
Check # Amount

Total Qutstanding Checks
Computed Book Balance
Balance per General Ledger

Difference

3 80.58

80.58

80.58




Shoppes at Stadium TDD

Bank Recongiliation

Account Title: Revenue Fund
Account #: 129006.1

Statement Period:  6/1/2013 - 6/30/2013
Bank: UMB Bank, N.A.

Ending Balance from Bank Statement

Add Deposits in Trunsit:

Deposit Date Amount

Total Deposits in Transit

Subtract Quistanding Checks:
Check # Amount

Total Quistanding Checks
Computed Book Balance
Balance per General Ledger

Difference

$ 107,167.82

107,167.82

107.167.82




Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Bank Reconciliation

Account Title: Baond Payment Fund
Account #: 129606.2

Statement Period: 6/1/2013 - 6/30/2013
Bank: UMB Bank, N.A.

Ending Balance from Bank Statement

Add Deposits in Transit:
Deposit Date Amount

Total Deposits in Transit

Subtract Quistanding Checks:
Check # Amournt

Total Qutstanding Checks
Computed Book Balance
Balance per General Ledger

Difference

0.80

0.80

0.80




Shoppes at Stadium TDD

Bank Reconciliation

Account Title; Debt Service Reserve Fund
Account #: 129006.4

Statement Period: 6/1/2013 - 6/30/2013
Bank: UMB Bank, N.A.

Ending Balance from Bank Statement

Add Deposits in Transit:

Deposit Date Amount

Total Deposits in Transit

Subtract Outstanding Checks:
Check # Amount

Total Outstanding Checks
Computed Book Balance
Balance per General Ledger

Difference

$ 235,105.52

235,105.52

235,105.52




Shoppes at Stadium TDD

Bank Reconciliation

Aceount Title: Project Fund
Aeccount #: 129006.5

Statement Period: 6/1/2013 - 6/30/2013
Bank: UMB Bank, N.A.

Ending Balance from Bank Staternent

Add Deposits in Transit:

Deposit Date Amount

Total Deposits in Transit

Subtract Outstanding Checks:
Check # Amount

Total Qutstanding Checis
Computed Book Balance
Balance per General Ledger

Difference




Shoppes at Stadium TDD

Bank Reconciliation

Account Title; Operating Fund
Aecount #: 129006.6

Statement Period: 6/1/2013 - 6/30/2013
Bank: UMB Bank, N.A.

Ending Balance from Bank Statement

Add Deposits in Transit:

Depaosit Date Amount

Total Deposits in Transit

Subtract Outstanding Checks:
Check # Amount

Tota] Outstanding Checks
Computed Book Balance
Balance per General Ledger

Difference

3 2,351.24

2,351.24

2,351.24




Shoppes at Stadium TDD

Bank Reconciliation

Account Title: Redemption Fund
Account #: 129006.3

Statement Period:  6/1/2013 - 6/30/2013
Bank: UMRB Buank, N.A.

Ending Balance from Bank Statement

Add Deposits in Transit:

Deposit Date Amount

Total Deposits in Transit

Subtract Outstanding Checks:
Check # Amount

Total Outstanding Checks
Computed Book Balance
Balance per General Ledger

Difference

$ 1,211.43

1,211.43

1,211.43




Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Bank Reconciliation

Account Title: Sales Tax Trust Fund
Account #: 178608

Statement Period: /172013 - 6/30/2013

Bank: Boone County National Bank

Ending Balance from Bank Statement

Add Deposits in Transit:

Deposit Date Amount

Total Deposits in Transit

Subtract Outstanding Checks:
Check # Amount

Total Outstanding Checks
Computed Book Balance
Balance per General Ledger

Difference

169.52

169.52

169.52




Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Accounts Payable (aged)

As of June 30, 2013

Vendor Invoice No. 0-30 31-60 Over 90 days  Amount Due
Landers, Weiss, and Co. LLC 063010 1,162.50 1,162.50
Landers, Weiss, and Co. LLC 053110 1.312.50 1,312.50
Landers, Weiss, and Co. LLC ach 450.00 450.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 80217 6,703.94 6,703.94
Landers, Weiss, and Co. LLC 09222010 262.50 262.50
Van Matre, Harmison, Volkert & Hollis 96268 1,629.19 1,629.19
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 97674 1,960.00 1,960.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 104883 2,260.00 2.,260.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 106351 2.520.00 2,520.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 101945 4,756.75 4,756.75
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 103419 7,212.00 7,212.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 107193 1,710.00 1,710.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 108685 1.220.00 1,220.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 109434 860.00 800.00
TKG 022012 21.61 21.61
TKG 032012 53.49 53.49
TKG 042012 21.07 21.07
TKG 052012 19.78 19.78
TKG 062012 22.03 22.03
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 112203 4,740.00 4,740.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 110968 1,137.93 1,137.93
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 111746 1,060.00 1,060.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 112528 160.00 160.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 11305 520.00 520.00
TKG 072012 32.07 3207
TKG 082012 72.64 72.64
TKG 092012 82.05 82.05
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 114085 1,140.00 1,140.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 114855 1,200.00 1,200.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 116431 660.00 66G.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 117223 3,220.50 3,220.50
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 117998 360.00 360.00
Van Matre, Harrison, Volkert & Hollis 119499 380.00 380.00
Total Accounts Payable $ 380.00 § 360.00 § $ 48,122.55 $ 4886255




Beginning balance as of January 1, 2013

Sales tax revenue - January 2013
Sales tax revenue - February 2043
Sales tax revenue - March 2013
Sales tax revenue - April 2013
Sales tax revenue - May 2013
Sales tax revenue - June 2013

Current year total

*Estimated based on sales tax collections from last year.

Shoppes at Stadiem TDD

Accounts Receivable - Saics Tax Revenue
For theSix Months Ending June 30, 2013

Sales Tax Coliection

Sales Tax Deposit

3 25806.06 $ 27,805.88
4431964 51,726.65
28,833.63 25,806.60
40,241.76 44,319.64
38,431.94 28,833.63
26,000.00 * 40,241.76
$ 203,633.63 $ 218,734.22

Accounts
Receivable

6780588

65,806.66
58.399.65
61,426.62
57.348.74
66,947.05
§2,705.29



Beginning balance as of February 15, 2005

Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amorlizalion expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bend issuance amortization ¢xpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amentization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amontizalion expense
Bond issuance amortizalion expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amcrization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization txpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuatce amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issunance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense

Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Bond Issuance Cost - 2005 Bonds

March-05
April-05
Muy-05
June-03
July-05
August-03
September-038
October-05
November-05
December-03
January-06
February-06
March-06
Aprii-06
May-06
June-06
July-06
August-06
September-06
October-06
November-06
December-06
Januvary-07
February-07
March-07
April-07
May-07
June-07
Juby-07
August-07
September-017
October-07
November-07
December-07
January-08
February-(8
March-08
April-08
May-08
June-08
July-08
August-08
September-08
October-08
November-08
December-08
January-0%
February-(9
March-09
Apnl-09
May-09
June-09
July-09
August-09
September-09
October-09

Bond lssuance
Amortization Expense

451,92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
45192
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
455.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451,92
451.92
451.92
45192
451,92
451.92
451.62
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92

Bond Issuance Cost
134,219.00

133,767.08
133,315.17
132,863.25
132,411.34
131,959.42
131,507.51
131,055.59
130,603.67
130,151.76
129,699.84
129,247.93
128,796.01
128,344.09
127,892.18
127,440.26
126,988.35
126,536.43
126,084.52
125,632.60
125,180.68
124,728.77
124,276.85
123,824.94
123,373.02
122,921.10
122.469.19
122,017.27
121 565.36
121,113.44
126,668.53
120,209.61
119,757.69
119,305.78
118,853.86
118,401.95
117,850.03
117,498.11
117,046.20
116,594.28
116,142.37
115,690.45
115,238.54
114,786.62
114,334.70
113,882.79
113,430.87
112,978.96
112,527.04
112,075.12
111,623.21
111,171.29
110,719.38
110,267.46
109,815.55
109,363.63
108,911.71



Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortizalion expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amaortization expense
Bond issuance amorfization expense
Bond issugnce amortization expensc
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issvance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization sxpense
Bond isswance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amottization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense

November-09
December-09
January-10
February-10
March-10
April-10
May-10
June-10
July-19
August-10
September- 10
Qctoher-10
November-10
December-19
lanuary-11
Febroary-1 1
March-11
April-11
May-11
June-11
Juby-11%
August-11
September-i1
October-11
MNavemnber-11
December-11
January-12
Fcbruary-12
March-12
April-12
May-12
June-12
July-12
August-12
September-12
October-12
November-12
December-12
Jasuary-13
February-13
March-13
April-i3
May-13
June-13
July-13
August-13
September-13
QOctober-13
November-13
December-[3
Jarwary-14
February-14
March-14
April-14
May-14
June-14
July-14
August-14
September-14
Octoher-14
November-14
December-14
fanuary-i5
February-15
March-15

451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
45192
451.92
451,92
45192
451,92
451,92
451.92
451.92
45{.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
45192
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
451,92
45192
451.92
451.92
451,92
451,92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45].92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192

108,459.80
108,007 88
107,555.97
107,104.05
106,652.13
106,200.22
105,748.30
105,294.39
104,844.47
194,392.56
103,940.64
103,488,72
103,036.81
102,584.88
102,132.96
101,681,04
101,229.12
100,777.20
100,325.28
99,873.36
99,421 44
98,969.52
98,517.60
98,065.68
97,613.76
97,163.84
96,709.92
96,258.00
95,806.08
95,354.16
94,.902.24
94.450.32
93,998 40
93,546.48
93,094.56
92,642.64
92,190.72
91.738.80
91,286.88
90,834.96
90,383.04
89,931.12
89.479.20
89,027.28
88,575.36
88,123.44
87,671.52
87.219.60
86,767.68
£6,315.76
85,863.84
85.411.92
84,960.00
84,508.08
84,056.16
£3,604.24
83,152.32
82.700.40
82,248 4§
81,796.56
81.344.64
80,892.72
80,440.80
79,988.88
79.536.96



Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance atnortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expensc
Bond isswance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance ameriization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortizution expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization ¢xpense
Band issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortizaiion expense
Bend issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amoriization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Band issuance amortization expense
Rond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amaortization expense
Bend issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amentization éxpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bord issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortizalion expense
Bond issuance amortization €xpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amaortization expense
Bond issuance amartization expense
Bond issuance amartization expensc
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense

Aprit-15
May-15
June-15
July-15
August-15
September-15
October-15
November-15
December-15
January-16
February-16
March-16
April-16
May-16
June-16
July-16
August-16
September-16
October-16
November-16
December-16
January-17
February-{7
March-17
April-17
May-17
Jupe-17
July-17
August-£7
September-17
Qetober-17
Novemnber-17
December-17
January-18
February-18
March-18
April-18
May-18
June-18
July-18
August-18
September-18
Qctober-18
November- 1%
December-18
January-19
February-19
March-19
April-19
May-19
Jume-19
July-19
August-19
September-19
October-19
November-1%
December-19
January-20
February-20
March-20
April-20
May-20
June-20
July-20
August-20

45192
451.92
451,92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45].92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
45192
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45§92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.02
451.92
451.92

79,085.04
78,633.12
78,181.20
77.729.28
7727136
76,825 .44
76,371.52
75.921.60
75,469.68
75,017.76
74,565.84
74,113.92
73,662.00
71.210.08
72.758.16
72,306.24
71,854.32
71,402.40
70,950.48
70,498.56
70,046,64
69,594.72
69,142.80
68,690.88
68,238.96
67,787.04
67.335.12
66,883.20
66,431.28
65,979.36
65,527.44
65,075.52
64,623.60
64,171.68
63,719.76
63,267.84
62.815.92
62,364.00
61,012.08
61,460.16
61,008.24
60,556.32
60,104.40
50,652.48
59,200.56
58,748.64
58,296.72
57,844.80
57,392.8%
56,940.96
56,489.04
56.037.12
55,585.20
55,133.28
54,681.36
54,229 44
53,777.52
53,325.60
52.873.68
52,421.76
51,969.84
51,517.92
51,066.00
50,614.08
50,162.16



Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amartization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortizajion expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amoriization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond isswance amortization expense
Bond issuance anortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bend issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortizalion expense
Bond issuanece amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expensc
Bend issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization ¢xpense
Band issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issusnce amortization expense
Bond isstance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expensc
Bond issuance amortization expensc
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond jssuance amortization expense

September-20
October-20
November-20
December-20
Janvary-21
Fehruary-21
March-21
April-21
May-21
June-21
haly-21
August-21
September-21
October-21
November-2!
December-21
Fanuary-22
February-22
March-22
April-22
May-22
June-22
July-22
August-22
September-22
October-22
November-22
Decensber-22
January-23
February-23
March-23
Aprit-23
May-23
June-23
July-23
August-23
September-23
October-23
November-23
December-23
January-24
February-24
March-24
April-24
May-24
June-24
July-24
August-24
September-24
October-24
November-24
December-24
January-25
February-25
March-25
April-25
May-25
June-25
July-25
August-23
September-25
October-25
November-25
December-25
January-26

45192
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
453.92
451,92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451,92
451,92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
431.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451,92
431,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92

49,710.24
49,258.32
48,806.40
48,354,438
47,902.56
47.450.64
46,998.72
46,546.80
46,094.88
45,642.96
45,191.04
44,739.12
44,287.20
43,835.28
43,383.36
42,931.44
42,479.52
42,027.60
41,575.68
41,123.76
40,671.84
40,219.92
39,768.00
39,316.08
38,864.16
38,412.24
37,960.32
37,508.40
37,056.48
36,604.56
36,152.64
35,700.72
35,248 80
34,796.88
34,344.96
33,893.04
33,441.12
32,989.20
32,537.28
3208536
31,633.44
31,183.52
30,729.60
30,277.68
29,825.76
29,373.84
28.921.92
28.470.00
28,018.08
27,566.16
27,114.24
26,662.32
26,210.40
25,758.48
25,306.56
24,854.64
24.402.72
23,950.80
23.498.88
23,046.96
22,595.04
22,143.12
21,691.20
21,239.28
20,787.36



Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amottization expense
Bond issuance asnoriization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond isswance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expernse
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amoertization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization ¢xpense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Band issuance amoriization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization expense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense
Bond issuance amortization cxpense

Total bond issuance amortization expense

February-26
March-26
April-26
May-26
June-26
July-26
August-26
September-26
October-26
November-26
December-26
January-27
February-27
March-27
April-27
May-27
June-27
Juby-27
August-27
September-27
Qctober-27
November-27
December-27
January-28
February-28
March-28
April-28
May-28
June-28
July-28
August-28
September-28
October-28
November-28
December-28
January-29
February-29
March-29
April-29
May-29
June-29
July-29
August-29
September-29
Qctober-29
November-29

451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
451,92
451,92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
45192
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
45§.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451,92
451.92
451.92
451,92
45192
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
451.92
45192
451.92
451.92
450,96

134,215.00

Naote 1: The bond issuance cost of $134,219 will be amortized over the life of the 2005 Bonds.

20,335.44
19,883.52
19,431.50
18,979.68
18,527.76
18,075.84
17,623.92
17,172.00
16.720.08
16.268.16
15,816.24
15,364.32
14.912.40
14,460.48
14,008.56
13,556.64
13,104.72
12,652.80
12,200.88
{1,748.96
11,297.04
10,845.12
10,393.20
9,941.28
9,489.36
9,037.44
8,585.52
3,133.60
7,681.68
722976
6,777.84
6,325.92
5,874.00
5,422.08
4.970.16
4,518.24
4,066.32
3.614.40
3,162.48
2,710.56
2,258.64
1,806.72
1,354.80
902.88
450.96



Beginning balance as of January I, 2013

Dehbt service accrual for January 31, 2013
Debt service accrual for February 28, 2013
Debt service accrual for March 31, 2013
Debt service accrual for April 30, 2013
Debt service payment on May 1, 2013
Debt service accrual for May 31, 2013
Debt service accrual for June 30, 2013

Current year totals

Next debt service payment
November 1, 2013

Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Accrued Debt Service - Series A
For the Six Months Ending Fune 30, 2013

Payment

59,381.25

Interest
Expense

§ 9,896.88
9,896.88
9,896.88
9,896.86
9,453.13
9,453.13

$

59,381.25

§ 58,403.76

Accrued
Interest

19,793.75
20,690.63
39,587.51

49,484.39
59,381.25

9,453.13
18,906.26

56,718.75



Shoppes at Stadium TDD
Accrued Debt Service - TKG
For theSix Months Ending June 30, 2013

Beginning balance as of January 1, 2013

Debt service accrual for January 31, 2013

Debt service accrual for February 28, 2013

Debt service accrual for March 31, 2013

Debt service accrual for April 30, 2G13

Debt service accrual for May 31, 2013

Debt service acerual adjustment for June 30, 2013*
Debt service accrual for June 30, 2013

Current year totals

Interest
Payment Expense

$  13,33326
12,042.95
13,333.26
12,903.16
13,333,26
120,309.06
18,529.95

- § 203,784.90

Acerued
Interest

583,227.05

596,560.31
608,603.26
621,936.52
634,839.68
648,172.94
768,482.00
787,011.95

*TKG capitalized annual interest to principal in June 2013, Adjusied accrued interest 1o account for increased interest

accruals and tie to totai payoff balance as of 7/1/2013.



